
 
Clean Energy Future Committee  

Meeting Minutes 
                                                      

Approved at the 6-26-2020 meeting 
 

May 22, 2020 
8:00 – 9:30 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting – Hosted on Zoom 
 
Members present: Jim DiTullio, Ryan Katofsky, Ken Pruitt, Dave Levy, Emily Sullivan, 
Coralie Cooper, Shelly Dein, Dan Amstutz, Nellie Aikenhead, Marc Breslow, Pasi 
Miettinen. 
 
Members not present: Dan Dunn, Adam Chapdelaine 
 
The meeting convened at 8:04 a.m. 
 
Video Meeting Procedures 
Mr. Pruitt read a set of prepared remarks explaining the procedures that the Committee 
would follow to hold a virtual meeting. Governor Baker signed an Executive Order in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic allowing virtual meetings, which suspended the 
usual Open Meeting Law requirement that a quorum of committee members be 
physically present in order to hold an official committee meeting. 
 
Meeting Minutes 
Mr. Pruitt noted edits to the Minutes from the April 24, 2020 Meeting made by himself, 
Ms. Dein and Mr. Amstutz and went through the updated Minutes to the entire 
Committee. Mr. Katofsky motioned to approve the Minutes. Ms. Dein seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was held to approve the Minutes from April 24, 2020. The 
Committee unanimously approved the Minutes. 
 
Agenda Item 1: Review Zoning and Permitting Measures  
Mr. Pruitt noted the original list of recommended Zoning and Permitting-related 
greenhouse gas mitigation measures came from the Metropolitan Area Planning 
Council (MAPC). Mr. Pruitt said a smaller working group including three members from 
the Clean Energy Future Committee and two from the Arlington Redevelopment Board 
reviewed the list and made edits, additions and subtractions. Mr. Pruitt then reminded 
the Committee that all greenhouse gas mitigation measures discussed during this 
meeting and previous meetings would be reviewed again by the Committee before the 
Net Zero Plan is finalized.  
 
Action Number 9: Mr. Pruitt started the discussion with Action Number 9, Review 
Whether there are unnecessary barriers to energy efficiency and renewable energy 



technologies in Historic Districts, to accommodate Ms. Aikenhead’s schedule (she 
needed to leave the meeting early). Ms. Aikenhead, a member not just of the CEFC but 
also the Historic District Commission (HDC), noted she was still in the process of 
researching what the HDC has approved vs. denied in the past, and offered to come 
back with more substantive research findings in a subsequent meeting. Mr. Breslow 
asked if the Historic District Commission could revise its Design Guidelines to make it 
easier for owners to undertake projects that improve energy efficiency and produce 
renewable energy. Jenny Raitt, Director of Planning and Community Development, and 
a member of the working group that reviewed MAPC’s Zoning and Permitting measures, 
noted that the sub-committee reviewed the Design Guidelines and wondered if 
everyone could review them in more depth. Ms. Aikenhead offered to review the 
Guideline proposals in advance of the next CEFC meeting. Ms. Dein noted that in other 
Historic Districts in other towns, getting approval for windows that were truly insulated 
has been difficult. Mr. Katofsky noted his support for making the language of Action 
Number 9 more action oriented and finding a way to make allow Arlington’s Historic 
Districts to remain historic but also help residents achieve their energy efficiency and 
renewable energy goals.  
 
Action Number 1: Mr. Pruitt then turned to Action Number 1, Require all new 
construction requiring a Special Permit (which by definition only includes commercial 
buildings and residential buildings with at least six units) to include solar photovoltaic 
(PV) and/or solar thermal on a minimum of 50% of roof area (except if infeasible). Mr. 
Katofsky asked: What triggers a special permit? Ms. Raitt explained and noted that this 
measure would touch various permitting processes. Mr. Katofsky wondered if the 
measure should be made broader, to apply to all new buildings even if they didn’t 
require a Special Permit. Mr. Katofsky also asked what would happen if an owner 
elected to install solar thermal, but demand for hot water was insufficient to warrant 
solar thermal panels covering 50% of roof area. Mr. Pruitt explained that the wording of 
the measure would require the remaining space up to 50% to be filled with solar PV. Mr. 
Katofsky recommended that the term “infeasible” be defined as much as possible. 
 
Action Number 2: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Number 2, Provide training 
opportunities for Town departments, boards and committees, as well as developers, on 
a list of building energy performance standards (not listed in these minutes for sake of 
brevity). Mr. Amstutz commented that if the Commonwealth had training or education 
materials, the Town should leverage such training materials rather than creating them. 
Mr. Pruitt agreed and said Arlington may also be able to get grants for training as well. 
Ms. Dein asked whether the measure could start with “Support” instead of “Provide,” so 
that the Town was not responsible for providing its own training, but instead could take 
advantage of training already provided by others.. Mr. Pruitt made that change without 
objection from the Committee.  
 
Action Number 3: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Number 3, whether the Town should 
establish a rental licensing program that would include requirements for energy 
efficiency. Ms. Dein asked whether there would be adverse consequences of requiring 
such a license, such as property owners turning rentals into condos to avoid licensing 
requirements. Mr. Amstutz asked what the other benefits (aside from those which are 
energy-related) would be and wondered why a net zero plan would want to use this tool. 



He also wondered whether a net zero plan is the right vehicle for doing rental licensing. 
Mr. Pruitt said that a number of municipalities, including Somerville, had rental licensing 
requirements that include energy efficiency requirements, specifically to address the 
“split incentive” inherent the landlord-tenant relationship (landlords typically need to pay 
for capital improvements, but it is typically the tenants who reap the benefits of those 
improvements in the form of lower energy costs). Ms. Raitt, responding to Mr. Amstutz, 
noted that several plans Town committees are working on address various initiatives 
that overlap or should be integrated. She also recommended that there be edits to this 
Action measure. Ms. Dein suggested the word “Consider” at the beginning of the 
measure so that it would begin as “Consider requiring.” Mr. Pruitt agreed to make this 
change, but also noted that final word choices are not required at this time and more 
opportunities for wording changes will be allowed later. Mr. Katofsky noted that this 
measure feels like a stick vs. a carrot and wondered if further incentives could be 
explored. Mr. Pruitt, without objection, said he would keep this measure in the list but 
acknowledged it will require further discussion and edits at a subsequent meeting.  
 
Action Numbers 4 and 5: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Numbers 4 and 5 for a 
combined discussion. Measure 4 would allow reductions of height, setback and density 
requirements for energy efficiency and renewable energy retrofits of existing buildings. 
Measure 5 would allow, via Special Permit, full building foundation replacements to 
allow for existing homes to be made net zero energy. Mr. Katofsky voiced support for 
both measures. Ms. Cooper said both measures were discussed at length in the 
working group and voiced support for both Measures. Mr. Miettinen voiced his support 
and offered one small word change on changes to height. Ms. Dein asked a question 
about intent of the measures. Mr. Miettinen noted that various homes are on non-
conforming lots because the non-conforming structures are grandfathered, so 
replacement is not possible. Further, it is cheaper to replace a home compared to 
renovating it with the existing foundation. Ms. Raitt recommended that language about 
building standards be made more generic here and throughout all measures in the list, 
along the lines of “equal or better standards” to avoid having the Net Zero Plan become 
dated.  
 
Action Number 6: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Number 6, whether the Town should 
consider establishing a Chapter 40R Smart Growth Zoning Overlay District to allow for 
greater building density (and buildings with a lower carbon footprint) in certain areas of 
town. Ms. Raitt provided an overview of what Chapter 40R is and noted that the state 
can provide financial incentives to counteract the potential for increased expenses 
resulting from more development. Ms. Cooper expressed support for this measure, 
noting that increasing density can substantially decrease transportation-related 
greenhouse gas emissions and should help with overall efforts to become net-zero. Mr. 
Miettinen asked about consequences and wondered how this measure could be pushed 
through effectively. Mr. Pruitt acknowledged this question and said that step one was 
asking if the CEFC supported the concept and then next steps would occur with other 
Town boards and ultimately Town Meeting.  
 
Action Number 7: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Number 7, Require all new apartment 
buildings to install a minimum number of electric vehicle charging stations. Mr. Breslow 
asked a question about the word “Fraction” in the draft measure. Mr. Pruitt explained 



that there would be a minimum of one charging station in any apartment building and 
stations would be rounded to the nearest increment. Mr. Katofsky noted that “charging 
ports” should be used to make the concept more specific, since one “station” could 
charge two vehicles at the same time. Ms. Cooper noted that the working group had 
agreed to review the International Energy Conservation Code to see what it would 
require when it goes into effect in 2021. Mr. Pruitt said he did review that code and it 
only requires pre-wiring for charging stations, not the installation of any stations. He 
noted our measure would go further because it would require the installation of charging 
stations and not just making the parking area pre-wired. Ms. Dein asked that the 
Committee define “apartment” compared to “multifamily.” Ms. Raitt noted that 
“apartment building” is specifically defined in the Zoning Bylaw. Mr. Pruitt then asked if 
we should change the word to “multifamily” with six units or greater, and without 
objection offered to make that change. Ms. Dein expressed concern about the impact of 
this measure on affordable housing, where most unit residences will not have cars. Mr. 
Pruitt offered that a further drafting could have some exemption or alternatives for 
affordable housing. 
 
Action Number 8: Mr. Pruitt then moved to Action Number 8, which would both promote 
solar installations and protect existing installations from shading from adjacent 
properties, via MGL chapter 40A section 9B. Mr. Pruitt noted details would be in a 
process following this effort. Ms. Dein offered an example of unintended consequences 
where a neighbor could install solar specifically to block the construction of a tall 
building nearby. Mr. Levy acknowledged Ms. Dein’s concerns but also voiced support 
for the measure and asked that the Committee further refine it. Without objection, Mr. 
Pruitt said he would leave the measure on the list for now. 
 
Action Number 9 was discussed earlier in the meeting. The remaining Action Numbers 
10 and 11 will be discussed at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Breslow motioned that the meeting be adjourned. Ms. Dein seconded the motion. A 
roll call vote was held. The Committee unanimously approved the motion to adjourn the 
meeting.  
 
The Meeting ended at 9:30am. The next meeting will occur on June 26, 2020.  
 
Submitted by Dave Levy. 



 
Clean Energy Future Committee 

 

 
Date: Friday May 22, 2020 
Time: 8:00 a.m. 
Location: Conducted via remote participation 
 
To register for the Zoom Meeting:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZErde2hqzguHtLum6lDHaJ6_b2HL9aUQjQp 
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about 
joining the meeting. 
 
Members of the public are asked to send written comment to: 
kpruitt@town.arlington.ma.us. 
 
*Notice to the Public on meeting privacy*  
In the interests of preventing abuse of videoconferencing technology (e.g. “Zoom 
Bombing”) all participants, including members of the public, wishing to participate via 
Zoom must register for each meeting and will notice multi-step authentication protocols. 
Please allow additional time to join the meeting. Further, members of the public who 
wish to participate without providing their name may still do so by telephone at 312-626-
6799. Meeting ID: 856 2495 3446. Password: 126184. 
 
Documents related to the below agenda items follow as attachments to this document. 
 
Agenda 
 
8:00 – 8:05: Review meeting ground rules 
 
8:05 – 8:10: Review & Approve Minutes from 4/24/2020 meeting 
 
8:10 – 9:30: Review draft Zoning and Permitting measures for Net Zero Plan 
 
Next meeting: June 26, 2020 
 
Attachments:  

1) Governor Charles Baker’s 3/12/2020 Executive Order Suspending Certain 
Provisions of the Open Meeting Law 

2) Meeting minutes from 4/24/2020 
3) Draft Zoning and Permitting Measures 

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZErde2hqzguHtLum6lDHaJ6_b2HL9aUQjQp
mailto:kpruitt@town.arlington.ma.us








 

 
Clean Energy Future Committee  

Meeting Minutes 
                                                      

Draft – for approval at the 5-22-2020 meeting 
 

April 24, 2020 
8:00 – 9:30 a.m. 
Virtual Meeting – Hosted on Zoom 
 
Members present: Jim DiTullio, Ryan Katofsky, Ken Pruitt, Dave Levy, Marc Breslow, 
Emily Sullivan, Coralie Cooper, Shelly Dein, Dan Amstutz, Adam Chapdelaine. 
 
Members not present: Dan Dunn, Nellie Aikenhead, Pasi Miettinen. 
 
The meeting convened at 8:06 a.m. 
 
Video Meeting Procedures 
Mr. Pruitt read a set of prepared remarks explaining the procedures that the Committee 
would follow to hold a virtual meeting. Governor Baker signed an Executive Order in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic allowing virtual meetings, which suspended the 
usual Open Meeting Law requirement that a quorum of committee members be 
physically present in order to hold an official committee meeting. 
 
Meeting Minutes 
Ms. Cooper made two edits to the Minutes as well as Mr. Katofsky noted a name 
change. Mr. Katofsky motioned to approve the Minutes. Mr. Breslow seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was held to approve the Minutes from 03/27/2020. The 
Committee unanimously approved the Minutes. 
 
Agenda Item 1: Volunteers Sought for Zoning and Permitting Working Group 
Mr. Pruitt noted that while the Committee is almost done reviewing the list of MAPC-
suggested items for inclusion in the Net Zero Plan, MAPC is also proposing a list of 
zoning and permitting measures that could be beneficial for this effort. Mr. Pruitt noted 
that to review this list, a working group of two members each from the CEFC and the 
Arlington Redevelopment Board was being formed. The CEFC-ARB working group is 
expected to complete its review by May 15 so that the list of revised measures could 
then go to the full CEFC. Mr. Levy and Ms. Cooper volunteered to participate on the 
working group from the CEFC. 
 
Agenda Item 2: Clean Energy Supply GHG Mitigation Measures 
Mr. Pruitt then turned to a list of Clean Energy Supply GHG mitigation measures 
suggested by MAPC for potential inclusion in Net Zero plans. The CEFC reviewed six 
measures.  



 
 
Action Item 1 recommends that the Town increase the default percentage of carbon-
free electricity in the Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) program’s default to 100% 
by 2030. It also calls for an annual campaign to encourage residents to voluntarily opt-
up to the 100% level until that goal is reached. This measure is specifically written to be 
“carbon-free” by 2030 noting that hydro and nuclear are carbon-free but not considered 
“renewable.” 
 
Mr. Katofsky argued that “until that goal is reached” should be removed because the 
CCA renewable content level does not include nuclear or hydro, and encouraging 
residents to opt-up to the CCA 100% renewable level would help maintain strong 
demand for renewable power. Mr. Katofsky also suggested that by 2030, the CCA 50% 
renewable product could be unnecessary given the renewable generation coming online 
in New England between now and 2030. Mr. Katofsky also noted that we need to be 
mindful of the cost implications of increasing the renewable default level, especially 
during an economic downturn. Mr. Pruitt noted that Arlington could petition the 
Department of Public Utilities for inclusion of a rate reduction mechanism in Arlington’s 
CCA program that would prevent rate increases for low income customers. He 
suggested this greenhouse gas reduction measure should include language calling for 
monitoring of cost impacts on low-income ratepayers. 
 
Mr. Breslow noted he did not want to have nuclear power count toward this 100% 
carbon-free goal, and noted that this perhaps could make the 100% goal unviable. Mr. 
Pruitt noted the drawbacks to nuclear power, but noted eliminating nuclear from this 
measure would likely exacerbate cost concerns. 
 
Mr. Katofsky noted the expectation is most nuclear power plants will retire by 2040, 
noting that by 2050 the goal will be achieved in long term. Mr. Amstutz noted he’d like 
more background on the proposal to get a sense of the debate on nuclear and asked 
what a Class I REC is. Mr. Katofsky noted that the Class 1 REC is a statutory obligation 
for utilities in Massachusetts to procure a certain amount of generation from a specific 
class of renewable energy resources. It represents the types of renewables the 
Commonwealth is trying to procure to be considered renewable generation. When the 
town requires renewable generation to be bought for the CCA, the same standards are 
required for renewable generation to be counted as part of electricity supply.  
 
Ms. Dein noted that large hydro is not included as Class I and wind and solar outside of 
New England are not considered Mass Class 1 RECs unless there is a path for that 
power to be delivered. Mr. Katofsky noted there are two nuclear plants operating in New 
England. There are no nuclear plants planned for construction in New England. They 
currently have operating licenses that expire in the 2040s. 
 
Mr. Pruitt noted that nuclear has major benefits in terms of baseload power but noted 
there is a danger of a nuclear accident and there is no existing location for nuclear 
waste disposal. Ms. Dein noted that the practical ramifications would be if nuclear 
supplied 25% of the power, the CCA would purchase 75% Class I RECs and then would 
stop. Mr. Katofsky clarified that the RPS is currently 16%, so by 2030 it would be at 



 
36%. If we did nothing by 2030, we would be at 47%. By enacting this, we would at 
75%.  
 
Mr. Pruitt said that when the plan is written, specific definitions of renewable energy 
could be written in the plan with more detail. Mr. Katofsky noted that the original intent 
of this measure was to be fossil fuel free as an energy plan option. Mr. Pruitt said this 
was the first draft of this measure and asked if there was any objection in moving to the 
next measure. The Committee supported this measure but would like additional 
discussion before it is finalized in the Net Zero Plan. 
 
Regarding Action Number 2: Investigate the feasibility of developing a low-income 
community shared solar program, Ms. Cooper noted her support for this measure, and 
pointed out that this measure more directly supported construction of solar installations 
more than the above CCA measure. Mr. Levy noted that there are many private market 
entities examining how to bring solar to low income customers, so this may get solved 
on its own. Ms. Dein noted that Newton offers a low income option in its CCA program. 
Ms. Dein also noted the SMART program is offering solutions (or trying to) to target 
these customers. Mr. Pruitt asked for any objections to including the action item and 
including the language “with emphasis of low income rate payers.”  The Committee 
supported this measure.  
 
The Committee next discussed Action Item Number 3: Support state legislation and 
policies that decarbonize the region’s electricity supply, and promote decarbonization 
incentives specifically for low- to moderate-income residents. The Committee supported 
this measure.  
 
Regarding Action Item Number 4: Partnering with utilities and others to promote pilot 
programs to help customers transition away from natural gas by creating district 
geothermal heating and cooling systems. Mr. Pruitt said that this, at scale, could benefit 
many buildings, such as buildings on Mass Ave in Arlington. The Committee noted the 
uncertainty of this effort at such an early stage of its development, but supported 
promoting pilot projects where feasible practically and affordably. Mr. Pruitt noted 
Eversource and National Grid are exploring such pilots currently. Ms. Dein noted that a 
developer in Boston is examining this for a project in Boston. Mr. Katofsky said that he 
thinks one of the two utilities has money in its rate plan to examine a pilot project but he 
is unsure of which utility. The Committee supported this measure.  
 
Regarding Action Item Number 5: Put pressure on regulators and utilities to greatly 
accelerate the repair of gas leaks, the Committee supported this measure.  
 
The committee next discussed Action Item Number 6: Transitioning the Town’s 
Municipal Energy Supply Contract to be 100% carbon-free by 2030. The Town’s current 
municipal electricity supply contract started in December 2019 and expires in 2023. This 
measure would have the Town match the commitment in Action Item 1 to increase the 
carbon-free content of the CCA program default to be 100% by 2030.  
 
Mr. Katofsky wondered if the town should simply have the Town join the CCA but noted 
there may be advantages for the Town to procure separately with its own supply 



 
contract. The Committee supported this measure with the addition of language calling 
for the examination of costs vs. benefits of joining the CCA vs. having separate 
municipal supply contracts, and that the Town will consider costs when deciding 
whether this measure should call for 100% “carbon-free” vs. 100% “renewable” power, 
given controversy over nuclear power (the same concern voiced regarding Action Item 
1).  
 
Additional Discussion 
Ms. Cooper asked if the Town was thinking about the Stimulus Package and if the Town 
was thinking about “shovel ready projects.” Mr. Amstutz noted there is a group within 
the Town examining such projects and MAPC is trying to coordinate these projects as 
well throughout the various towns in the Commonwealth. Mr. Katofsky noted that the 
Department of Energy Resources issued recent orders in the SMART program that 
could really help make municipal projects more viable.  
 
Mr. Katofsky asked about how energy efficiency work could progress during the 
coronavirus pandemic. He noted that work in schools and other vacant buildings for 
efficiency upgrades could be a great effort to get people back to work. Mr. Levy 
supported this concept. 
 
Ms. Cooper motioned to end the meeting. Mr. Levy seconded. A roll call was taken to 
approve the motion to end the meeting. The Committee voted unanimously to approve 
the motion.  
 
The Meeting ended at 9:35am. The next meeting will occur on May 22, 2020.  
 
Submitted by Dave Levy. 



Action 

Number Action Description Type Example Source Link

1

Require all new construction requiring a Special Permit (which by 

definition only includes commercial buildings and residential buildings 

with at least six units) to include solar PV and/or solar thermal on a 

minimum of 50 percent of roof area. Allow for variances if solar is 

infeasible on a building.

2

Provide training opportunities for Town departments, boards and 

committees, as well as developers, on LEED, Net Zero, Passive House 

and other high performance standards, HERS ratings, life safety 

benefits of Net Zero buildings, and energy modelling. Additionally, 

provide guidance to developers on permitting for Net Zero buildings. 

3

Require licensing for rental units (assuming the Town has, or could 

have, the authority for this) and include energy efficiency 

requirements for ongoing compliance. This measure helps to address 

existing buildings and should be paired with protections for renters.

Somerville; Boulder, CO

https://bouldercolorado.g

ov/plan-develop/rental-

housing-licensing

4

Allow reductions of height, setback and density requirements by 

Variance or Special Permit for energy efficiency and renewable 

energy retrofits to existing buildings including (but not limited to): 

insulation, solar PV, solar thermal, living roofs, other eco-roofs, 

energy storage, and air-source heat pump equipment. Such 

reductions must not be significantly detrimental to abutters. 

5
Allow, via Special Permit, full building foundation replacements and 

small building footprint enlargements as long as the resulting 

construction meets Net Zero or Passive House standards. 

6

Consider establishing a Chapter 40R Smart Growth Zoning Overlay 

District (which allows for potential state reimbursement for costs 

associated with additional school children under Chapter 40S) to 

allow for dense residential or mixed-use development. Include design 

guidelines that promote buildings that meet Zero Energy, Passive 

House or other measures consistent with this Net Zero Plan.

FEASIBILITYZoning and Permitting Measures

https://bouldercolorado.gov/plan-develop/rental-housing-licensing
https://bouldercolorado.gov/plan-develop/rental-housing-licensing
https://bouldercolorado.gov/plan-develop/rental-housing-licensing


Action 

Number Action Description Type Example Source Link

FEASIBILITYZoning and Permitting Measures

7

Require all new apartment buildings to install a minimum of one 

electric vehicle charging station per five parking spaces (or fraction 

thereof).

8

Adopt, via MGL c40A section 9B, exemptions from setback, building 

height, and roof and lot coverage restrictions for solar PV and solar 

thermal systems; and 2) consider adopting some or all solar access 

protections enumerated in the second paragraph of that law.

9

Review whether there are unnecessary barriers to energy efficiency 

and renewable energy technologies in Historic Districts, and if so, 

what changes to the Historic District Commissions Design Guidelines 

could remove those barriers.

10

Promote the planting of trees on private property within 20 feet of 

the sidewalk through Town programs that provide trees at no 

charge. Existing programs such as the Trees Please Fund 

administered by the DPW should be reviewed to determine whether 

enhancements could increase participation.

11 Promote and, where possible, incentivize the installation of parking 

canopy solar arrays on private parking lots.


	0522020 Minutes Clean Energy Future Committee
	Clean Energy Future Committee  Meeting Minutes

	05222020 Agenda Clean Energy Future Committee
	05222020 Agenda Clean Energy Future Committee
	Signed Open Meeting Law Order 3.12.20
	04242020 Minutes Clean Energy Future Committee
	Clean Energy Future Committee  Meeting Minutes

	DRAFT Zoning And Permitting_05-19-20


